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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited

QOpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited {“the
Company/DAMEPL"), which comprise the Balance Shest as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changss in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including & summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its Loss {including other comprehensive income), the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinien

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Financial Statements section of our report. We are indspendent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
refevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No.33 regarding the Company's accumulated loss exceeding the net worth of the
Company. The arbitrgtion award was upheld in favour of the Company and DMRC is consequently directed to pay
Termination payment and other compensation, totaling to Rs.2,845 Crore, plus pre-award and post-award interest up
to the date of payment. DMRC has so far deposited Rs.2,509.17 Crore in the escrow account of the Company.
Proceeding for realisation of balance sums raceivable are going on. In view of above, financial statements are
prepared on going concern basis. :

Our report is not modified on these matters,

Emphasis of Matters:

We draw attention to Note No.23 where the Company had in earlier years, claimed CENVAT Credit of Rs.43.04 Crore
on purchases of fixed assets and accordingly netted off the same from the "Right Under Concession Agreement”. The
claim of CENVAT Credit was disallowed by Commissioner, Chandigarh, which was under dispute with Commissioner
{Appeals) of Customs and Excise, Dethi and imposed a penalty of Rs.65.01 Crore. The Company has filed an appeal
with CESTAT against the order of commissioner and pending outcome of the appeal, the same has not been provided
for in the books of accounts. ;

We draw attention to Note No. 24 (a) regarding dispute between Delhi Airport Metrc Express Private Limited
(DAMEPL) and Delhi Metro Rail Corperation (DMRC). The dispute was referred to the Arbitration Tribunal, which, vide
its Order dated May 11, 2017, granted arbitration award in favour of DAMEPL for Rs 4,662.59 Crore. The said award
was upheld by the single bench of Honeorable High Ceurt of Delhi and challenged in division hench by DMRC. Vide
Judgement dated September 09, 2021, the Order of Single Bench of Delhi High Court and the Award were upheld by
the Supreme Court. The Company filed execution petition before Delhi High Court on September 12, 2021 on which
Delhi High Court passes fina! Order on March 10, 2022, DMRC had so far deposited Rs. 2,599.17 Crore in the escrow
account of the Company as per interim Order dated December 06, 2021 of the Hon’ble Delhi High Court, and the
same was ufilized by the Company for its debt repayments. Also since DMRC has not paid the installments at least to
the extent of the undisputed portion, the Company is filing suitable proceeding for speedy realization of the sums
receivable. Resultant impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss and the final adjustment entries will be determined
after the execution of final award.

We draw attention to Note No. 24 (a) regarding no adjustment has been carried out for the impairment of fixed assets.
The arbitration award was upheld in favour of the Company and DMRC is consequently directed to pay Termination
payment and other compensation, totaling to Rs.2,945 Crore, plus pre-award and post-award interest up to date of
- payment. DMRC had so far deposited Rs. 2,699.17 Crore in the escrow accouni of the Company and the same was -
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utilised for debt repayment. The Company is filing suitable proceeding for speedy realisation of balance sums
receivable. The arbitration award amount was more than the carrying value of fixed assets.
Qur report is not modified on these matters.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matiers stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibllity also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisicns of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
efror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsitle for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are fres from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a2 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also;

+ lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

) intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of interhal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adeguate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effactivenass of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountmg estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether uncertainty exisis related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a uncertainty
exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financia! statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative fagtors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
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in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to svaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with gevernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant sthical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2
(@)

(b)
(c)

(9)

{h)

i)

As required by the Coempanies (Auditor's Report} Crder, 2020 (“the Order’).issued by the Central Governmant in

terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 & 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief wers necessary for the purposes of cur audit;

fn our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from cur examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account; .

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act;

The going concem matter described in Emphasis of Matters section above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in *Annexure 27;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requwements of
saction 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

(i) There were no pending litigations which would impact financial positicn of the Company.

(i) The Company did not have any long term confracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

(iiiy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and protection
fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023,

(iv} (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whather
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {* ‘Ultimate
Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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{(b) Management has representad to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been received by the company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whethert recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, fend or invest in other
persons or entities ideniified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us to believe that the representation given
by the management under paragraph (2} (i} (iv) {a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.

{v) The Campany has net declared or paid any dividend during the year,

For Bakliwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Regn.No.130381W

Ankur Jain
Partner
Membership No.197643

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2023
UDIN: 23197643BGWHDH5520
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(iv)

v

ANNEXURE - 1 To The INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in our report of even date of Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited on the accounts
for the year ended March 31, 2022

As informed to us, the Company has handed over all the assets to Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC) upon
termination of concession agreement with effect from 1% July 2013, however, due to pending legal proceedings,
the fixed assets have been continued to be shown in the books of accounts of the Company. Therefore, clause
(i) of the Order is not applicable,

(a) As explained to us, there is no inventcry hence clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not been sanctioned any
working capital limits from any bank or financial institution, Hence provisions of clause 3 (ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured or investments or advances or guarantees or security to companies, firms or other parties during the
year. Therefore clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, investment, guarantees and security during the year. Hence, clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit which is
deemed to be deposit from the public hence clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act for the Company. Therefore, clause (vi) of the
Order is not applicable.

a) In terms of the information and exptanations given by the Company and the books and records examined by
us, we state that the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, Goods and Service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable were
paid on regular basis. There were no statutory dues, outstanding for more than six months from the date
they became payable as on March 31, 2023.

b) In terms of the information and explanations given by the Company and the books and records examined
by us and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that there are no dues of income tax or Goods
and service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, except as below: ’

Name of Nature of Dues | Period to which it relates Amount Forum Where
Statute in Rs.("000) | dispute is pending
Finance Act, 1994 | CENVAT penalty AY.2009-10,2010-11, 2011-12 650,100 CESTAT

As per the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinations of the records of the
Company, there are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has defaulted in repayment of leans or borrowings to financial institution or bank for
the following instances in repayment of principal and interest amount. The Company did not have any loans or
borrowings from government during the year.

513, Atlanta Estate, Near Virwani Estate, G-M Link Road, W.E. Highway, Goregaon (F), Mumbai- 400063’
E-Mail: info@bakliwalca.com; Ph (022) 29271661; Web: www.bakliwalca.com




Rakliwal & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Bank Amount Due - Amount due —Principal Period
Interest Rs. in ‘000" Repayment
Axis bank 36,754 - September 22 -March 2023
Indian Bank 24,212 - September 22 -March 2023
Union Bank 16,821 - September 22 -March 2023
Bank of India 36,238 - September 22 -March 2023
Canara Bank 12,608 - September 22 -March 2023
Central Bank of India 25,205 - September 22 -March 2023
Bank of Baroda (Dena Bank) 80,924 - September 22 -March 2023
Punjab & Sindh Bank 28,082 - September 22 -March 2023
UCO Bank 42,637 - September 22 -March 2023
IIFC UK 83,210 - February 2022~ March 2023
Total 3,86,692 -

*The arbitration award was upheld in favour of the Company and DMRC is conseguently directed to pay Termination
payment and other compensation, totaling to Rs.2,945 Crore, plus pre-award and post-award interest up to the date of
payment. DMRC had so far deposited Rs. 2,599.17 Crore in the escrow account of the Company and the same was utilised
for debt repayment. The Company is filing suitable proceeding for speedy realisation of balance sums receivable. Refer note
24(a) of the Notss on Accounts.®

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.,

{¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records
of the Company, we report that during the year Company has not obtained any term loans.

(d} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used
during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised {oans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or asscciate companies.

(x) (@) In our opinicn and accerding to the information and explanation given to us during the course of audit, the
company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (inciuding debt instruments)
and term loans during the year. Therefore clause (x) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
debentures during the year hence clause 3(x) (b} of the Order is not applicable.

(xiy  (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on the Company or by
the Company, by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of
the Act has been filed by auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower complaints have been received
during the year by the Company.

513, Atlanta Estate, Near Virwani Estate, G-M Link Road, W.E. Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai- 400063
E-Mail: info@bakiiwalca.com; Ph (022) 26271661; Web: www.bakliwalca.com




RBakliwal & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(xii)

(xiif)

{xiv)

Xvi}

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore,
clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In terms of the information and explanations given by the company and the books and records examined by us
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that fransactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 & 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(a) In terms of the information and explanations given by the company, and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

{(b)We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till dats for the period under audit.

In terms of the information and explanations given by the Company and the books and records examined by us
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that the Company has not entered into non- cash
transaction with directors or persons connected with him. Therefore, clause (xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Resarve Bank of India Act, 1934.
{b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during

the year as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

{c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC} as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

{(d} In our opinion, and according to the information and expilanations provided to us, the Group does not have
any Core Investment Company (CIC).

xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore, provisions-of clause 3 (xviii)

of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix} According o the information and explanations given io us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and

expecied dates of realization of financial assests and paymeni of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, indicate that uncertainty exists that may
cast a significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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xx) According to information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the financial statements
of the Company, the CSR requirement is not zpplicable to the Company in view of losses incurred by the
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the Crder is not applicable.

For Bakliwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Regn.No.130381W

* AnKur Jain
Partner
Membership No.197643

tace: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2023
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ANNEXURE - 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in our report of even date of Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited
tor the year ended March 31, 2023:

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reparting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial conirols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting bassd
an our audit.

We condusted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conirols over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internaf financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reparting and the praparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial contral over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitior, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a materiat effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the pohmes or procedures may deteriorate
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internai financial controls over financial reporting were cperating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal centrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by ICAI

For Bakliwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Regn.No.130381W

‘Ankur Jaid
Partner
Membership No.197643

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2023

513, Atlanta Estate, Near Virwani Estate, G-M Link Road, W.E. Highway, Goregaon {F}, Mumbai- 400063
E-Mail: info@bakliwalca.com; Ph (022) 29271661; Web: www.bakliwalca.com




DELHI AIRPOR Y METR(C TXPRESS PRIVATE L TMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(Amount in Rs.'000)

Maiculars Note | Asal Asat
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
L Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 21 90,802 90,802
(b) Other Intangible Assets 2.2 2,71,24,551 2,71,24,551
fc) Tanancial Assets
£y Other Non Current Financial Assets 3 4,71,299 4,71,269
2,76,86,652 2,76,86,652
Cuwrrent assets
{a} Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 4 - -
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalants 3 7,88,856 9,33,376
{if) Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalants 6 995 969
(iii) Other Financial Assels 7 1,536 1,536
791,387 9,35,882
Total assets 2,84,78,039 2,86,22,534
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 8 9,600 9,600
Other equity 9 1,73,35,608 1,74,21,130
1,73,45,208 1,74,34,030
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(2) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 10 40,43,642 54,148,838
{b) Provisions 11 2,227 2,322
40,45,869 54,51,160
Current liabilities
() Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade pavables 12
Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise - 253
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than Micro 13,38,784 13,26,370
Enterprise and Small Enterprise
(if} Borrowings 13 2,25.811 18,868
(iii) Other financial liabilities 14 3,86,692 86,266
(1) Provisions 15 58 69
() Other current liabilities 16 51,35,617 42,753,518
70,806,962 57,37,344
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,84,78,039 2,86,22,534
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 2 t0 28

As per our Report of even date
For Bakliwal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn, No. 130381W

7 Ankut Jainy/
Partner
Membership No, 197643
Place : Mumbai
Date: 21.04.2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Girish Goyal
Director
DIN- 09410409

Place ; Mumbai

Date: 21.04.2023

Rakesh Kumar Yadav
Director
DIN-08364895

i




- DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Amount in Rs.'000)

Tarticalars Note No. Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Revenue from Operations - -
Other [ncome 17 25 90
Total Income 25 [hi)
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 18 10,235 9,974
Finance Cost 19 5,990 37,633
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 21422 - -
Other Expenses 2% 87,319 48,998
Total Expenses 1,03,545 96,605
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (1,03,519) {96,516)
Tax Expense:

Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax - -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (1,03,519) (96,516)

Other Comprehensive Income
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Total Other Comprehensive Income, ntet of taxes - B
Total Comprehensive income for the year (1,03,519) (96,516)
Earning per equity share of Rs.10 each fully paid up
(1) Basic 29 {108) {101
(2) Diluted 29 {108) (191
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 2 to 38

As per our Report of even date
For Bakliwal & Co,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. Nao. 130381W

Ankur Jain/

Partner

Membership Ne. 197643
Place : Mumbai

Date: 21.04.2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Girish Goyal
Direclor
DIN- 09-140-109

Place : hMumbai
Date: 21.0-£2023

Rakesh Kumar Yadav

Director

DIN-08364895




DELHUAIRPORT METRO EXPRESSPRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars Notes Balance af the Changes in Balance at the
beginning of the equity share | end of the year
year capital during
the year
As at March 31, 2022 8 9,600 - 9,600
As at March 31,2023 9,600 - 9,600
B. OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Notes Other Equity- Retained Other Total Equity
Equity Component Earning Comprehensive
of compound Income
financial
instruments
Asatl April 2021 9 2,52,40,289 {77,70,503) (266) 1,74,69,521
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (96,515) - {96,515)
Other comprehensive S . - R
income/ (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive - - . -
income/ (loss) for the year
Sub Debt Taken/ (Paid) during 51,424 - - 51,424
the vear
As at March 31, 2022 2,52,91,713 (78,67,018) (266) 1,74,24,430
As at April 1, 2022 2,52,91,713 (78,67,018) (266) 1,74,24,430
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - (1,03,519) - (1,03,519)
Other comprehensive - - - -
income/ (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive - - ~ -
income/ (loss) for the year
Sub Debt Taken/ (Paid) during 14,698 - - 14,698
the year
As at March 31, 2023 9 2,53,06,411 (79,70,537) (266) 1,73,35,608

The above Statement of Changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes (1 to 38)

As per our Report of even date

For Bakliwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 130381W

"Ankur Jain
Partner
Membership No. 197643

Place : Mumbai
Date: 21.04.2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Girish Goyal
Director
DIN: 08867556

Place : Mumbai
Date; 21.04.2023

Rakesh Kumar Yadav

Director
DIN-08364895




< DELHT AIRPORT METRO EXFRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
{rsmount in Rs,"000)

Particulars ) Year ended Year ended ‘
Maxch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 i
{A} Cash flow from Opeyating Activities T | :
Net Profit /(Loss) after tax (£03,519) (96,518)
Adjustment fo reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow: f
Firance Cost {including Interest and Finance C harges) 5,990 37,633 s
Finance Income (including Interest & Dividend Tncome and Capital Gain} {25) (90) ‘
Net Foreign Exchange Differences 17,830 1,658
Cash Flow from operating activities before Working Capital Changes (79.725) (57,315)
Working Capital Adjustinent:
AIncrease)/Decirease in Other Financial Assets - 1,37,40,669
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non Current Provision (96) 115
Increase/ (Decrease} in Trade Payables (2.6069) 5,674
Increase/ (Necrease) in Other Carrent Liabilities ‘ 14,82,800 (29.76,674)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Provision {L1) 0
Cash flow from Operating Activities 13,97,300 1,07,12,670 :
Income Tax (Paid) / refund (net) - 177 |
Cash Flow from/ (nsed in) Operatiing Activities (A) 13,97,300 1,07,12,847
{B} Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest Income a5 90
Investment in Deposils including Ma rgin money (25} (24 :
Cash Flow from / (used in) Investing Activities (B} [{0)] 67 q
(C) Cash flow from Financing Activities
Repaymentl of Secured Loans (12,25,254) {99,38,340)
Proceeds from Sub Debt and ICT (net) 14,698 51,424
I'inance Cost Paid (3.28,203)] - (30,802))
ash flow from/ (used in) Financing Activities (C) (15,41, 8200} (99,17,718)
(D) Net Increass/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents {A+B+C) {1,44,5200 7,95,196
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash equivalents 9.33,376 1,38,180
Closing Balance of Cash and Casly equivalents 7,688,856 9,33,376
Net Increaswi{Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents {144,520 7,595,196

Components of Cosh and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
{2y In Curtent accourst 7,858,856, 9,33,376 :
(i in Deposit account ) i

7,88,8506, 9,33,376,

Nakes ‘
i The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the *Indirect Method” as set out in the IND AS-7 on Cash Flow Statement.
i
i Reconcilaiton of Liablities arising out from financing activities
Particuiars ] As at Cash Flows Non Cash flow changes As at Lw
April 1, 2022 March 31, 2023
Fair Foreign exchange
- ) Value moevement i
)i Long Term Liablities 34,97,707 (12,28,254) G311 42,089,453 i
| Trasticulars As at Cash Flows Non Cash flow changes As at
April 1, 2021 Fair Foreign exchange March 31, 2022
Value movement
Changes
|| _1Long Term Liabiitics 1,52,97 430 £99,38,3440) 6,831 1,31,786 54,97,707
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Bakliwal & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm: Regn. No, 130381W
Girislk Goyal Rakesh Kumar Yaday
Ankur Jain’ . Director Director
Parfner DIN- §9440409 DIN-0836 1365
Membership No. 197643
Place : Mumibai : Place : Mumbai
Date: 21.04.2023 ' Date: 71.04.2023




DIELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED -~ —_—
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note L. Corparate Information, Basis of Preparation of Financials and Significant Accounting Policies

11

1.2

Background of the Company

Delhi Airport Metra Express Private Limited (the "Company" or "DAMEPL"), having CIN UZA210DL2008PTC176177, was
incorporated on April 01, 2008. Its registered office is at A-302, 3rd Floor, 6, Dr. APJ. Abdul Kalami Road, New Delhi 110011,

DAMEPL has been set up to undertake the business of “Design, Installation, Commissioning, Operation and Maintenance of Aijrport
Metro Express Line ie. New Delhi - Indira Gandhi International Alrport - Dwarka Sector-21" {Preject). Delhi Metro Rail Corporation
Limited (DMRC) had entered into a Concession Agreement with the Company on August 25, 2008 for the project for a period of 30
years.

Pursuant to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), the "Company”, had terminated the Concession
Agreement vide Termination Notice dated October 08, 2012 and consequently the entire assets (including project assets} had becn
handed over to DMRC with effect from 1st July 2013 and the Company ceased to provide for depreciation/amortisation. Refer note 24

(a).

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended] and other relevant provisions of
the Act, The policies set out below have been consistently applied duwing the Year presented. Figures have been rounded off to Rupees
thousand otherwise than specifically stated.

These financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
April 21, 2023, Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, incone tax authorities and other statutory
regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the Board of Directors of the Company have powers to amend / re-open the financial
statements approved by the Board / adopted by the members of the Company.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND ASs) with the going-concern principle
and on a historical cost basis except for Certain Financials Assets and Liabilities that are measured at Fair Value (Refer Accounting
Policy Regarding Financial Instruments). The methods used to measure fair values are discussed below.

The presentatien and grouping of individual items in the Balance Shee t; the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow
are based on the principle of materiality.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an erderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether thai price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if markel participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the tinancial statement ave categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, describes as follows, based on the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair valire measurement as a whole:

* Level Tinputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilites that the entity can access al the
measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted pricés included within Level 1, that are observable for the assel or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency.




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED - - - -
Notes forming pait of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

d.

al
all

al.2

Cwrent and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current if:

Itis expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

[tis expected to realise the asset within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Stmilarly, a liability is'classified as current if:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months alter the reporting
period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does
not affect this classification,
All other Lliabilities are classified as non-current,

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current,

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that may impact the
application of accounting policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and related disclosures concerning the
items involved as well as conlingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. The eslimates and management's judgments are
based on previous experience and other factors considered reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in am: future periods aflected.

Significant Accounting Policies
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial stalements are as given below. These
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enti ty and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity,

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset,

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A "debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

{a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

{b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (5FP1) on
the principal amount cutstanding. . .
After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the ETR method. Ameortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR
amortization s included in finance inceme in the Statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss. This category gencrally applies to trade and other receivables.
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al3

al4d

Debt instrument at FYTOCI (Fair Valuc through QCl})

A 'debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
{b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPEI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value
movements are recognized in the OCT. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or 1oss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to profit and loss, Tnlerest eamed whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method,

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which olherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such electon is allowed enly if deoing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred
to as ‘accounting mismatch’}), Debt instruments inchuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
tecognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
heid for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at
EVTOCL or FYTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides lo classify an aquity instrument as at FVTOCT, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
divideruls, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI ko P&L, even on sale of investmen, However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain er loss within equity,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

-The rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have expired, or

-The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
tlows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-threugh’ arrangement; and either (2) the Company has tansferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the Company has neither lransferred nor retained substantially all the risks
anl rewards of the asset, but has transterred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credil loss (ECLY model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposture:

(ajFinancial assets that are debt instruments, and are measuriéd at amartized cost o, B~ loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables
and banl balance,
{b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCL

{c) Trade receivables under Ind AS 18,
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a.2
a2.1

a.2.2

For recognition of intpairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. Tf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. Tf, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entily reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement -

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss, borrm\'ings, pavables, or
as derivatives designaled as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at
fair value and, in the case of borrowings and pavables, net of directly attributable transaction costs, The Company’s financial liabilities
inciude trade and other pavables, borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial
instrumerits.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial Kabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Habilities at amortized cost

Alter initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, Amortized cost
is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the protit or loss. This category generally applies 1o trade pavables and other
contractual liabilities,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or Ioss

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial Labilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilitios are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109 Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on Habilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial labilities designated upen initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recogmition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable Lo
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are nol subsequently transferred o profit and loss. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. The Company has not desi gnated any financial liability as at faiv value throu gh profit and loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured ab amortized cost using the EIR method, Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process, Amortized cost is
caleulated by taking into account any discount er preminm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amertization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and lass, ‘

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially diffevent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially medificd, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss,
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b,

d,

Intangible Assets :
Initial recognition and measurement

The Company has classified the rights under the Concession Agreement to manage, operate and maintain the Airport Mukre Express
Line as Intangible Assets being ‘Rights under Concession Agreement’, The value of the Intangible asset was measured and recoghized
on the date of completion of construction for the completed portion of the project at the cost ircrred on the Project towards
construction, Design, Installation and Commissioning of the Ajrport Express Line,

Cost incurred on project includes all project refated expenditure viz civil works, machinery under erection, construction and erection
materials, pre-operative expenditure, expenditure incidental/ attributable to the construction of project and related berrowing cost,
These expenses are net of recoveries and income (net of tax) from surplus funds arising out of project specific borrowings.

The Company has elected to utilize the option under Ind AS 101 by not applying the provisions of Ind AS 38 retrospectively and
continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount as a deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS. Therefore, the
carrving amount of intangible assets as per the previous GAAP as at Apri 2013, i.e.; the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS, were
maintained on transition to Ind AS.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits ate expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and
losses on dlisposal of an item of intangible assets are determinad by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying ameunt of
intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Property, Plant & Equipment :

Initial recognition and measurement

The gross block of the Property, Plant and Equipment's are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including any cost altributable to
bringing the asset to their working condition for their intended use, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in
value,

The carrying values of Property, Plant and Equipment's are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable,

Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in statement of Profit & Loss in the year the asset is derecognised,

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Depreciation & Amortisation:

(i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment's

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment's is provided on the Straight Line Aethod rates over the useful lives as prescribed in
the Schedulde IT to the Companies Act, 2013,

Depreciation on additions to/ deductions from property, plant & equipment during the vear is charged on pro-rata basis from/ up to the
month in which the asset is available for use/ disposed,

{ii) Amortisation; .

Intangible Assets being ‘Rights under Concession Agreement’ are amortzed over the remaining Concession period on straight line
method as per Ind AS - 38 as prescribed in Schedule - I to the Companies Act, 2013,

Cost of software recognized as intangible asset, is amortized on straight line method over a period of legal right to use or 3 years,
whichever is less,
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(ii7) Leasehold Improvement :
Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the respective lease period.

However, depreciation/ amortization on assets are not charged w.e.f, 1% July, 2013 as the entire assets had been handed over to
DMRC on account of termination of concession agreement, as explained above.

Impairment of Non- Financial Assets :
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are roviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there js any
indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Tmpairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. :

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to disposal and its value in use, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows trom continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assels or groups of assels (the “cash-generaling unit”, or “CGU .

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss, Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the
assets of the CGU,

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or ne
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assel’s carrying amount dees not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recagnized.

Borrowing Cost :

Barrowing costs that ave directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration/ developnient or erection of qualifying assets
are capilalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use, Qualifying assels are
assets which take a substantial period of time ko et ready for their intended use or sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing costs ncurred are
capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpese of obtaining a qualifying asses, the capitalization
of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding during the period
and used for the acquisition, construction/ exploration or erection of the qualifying asset,

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities hecessary fo prepare the qualilying assets for their
intended uses are complele. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extont that they are regarded as an adjustment to interust costs,

Other borr‘owi.ng costs are recognized as an expense in the vear in which they are incurred.

" Provisions :

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a pastevent, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to sette the obligation, Tf the effect of the time value of
’money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific o the liability, When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of lme is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best esimate of the cansideration required to settle the present obligation at teporting
date, taking into aceount the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,




DELHEAIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED - -
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

h, Employee benefits
L Defined contribution plans
A defined contiibution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed centributions into separate entities and
will have 1o legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts, Obligations for contribulions to defined contribution plans are
recognized as an employee benefils expense in profit or loss in the period d uring which services are rendered by employees.

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as Provident Fund, elc. are charged to the Statement of Profit and| Loss, as and
when incurred.

II. Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The gratuity is funded by the Company and is managed separately,

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefil that empioyees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior perieds; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the Fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is
based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.
The calculation is performed annually by a qualitied actuary using the projected unit eredit methed. When the calculation results in a
benefit to the Cempany, the recognized asset is limited to the total of any unrecognized past service costs and the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. An
economic benefit is available to the Company if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities. Any
actuarial gains or losses are recognized in OCL in the period in which they arise.

When the benefits of a plan are iy proved, the portion of the increased benefil relating to past service by employees is recopnized in
F F g v ermploy 5

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the average pariod until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest

immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

111, Other long-term employee benefits
Benefits under the Company's leave encashment constituée other long term employee benefits,

The Company’s net obligation in respect of leave encashment is the amount of futare benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted 1o determine its present value, and the fair value of any related
assels is deducted, The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian governmeant securities as at the reporting date
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations. The calculation is performed using the projected unit
credit method. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

IV, Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit abligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided,

A liability is recognized for the amount expected o be paid under performance related pay if the Company has a present legral or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the emplovee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

i

0.

Lease

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks-and benefits of ownership of the keased term, are classified as
operating leases, Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Finance leases which effectively transfer to the company substantial risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalized and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rale of interest on the remaining balance of the liability, Finance charges are charged directly against
income.

Revenue Recognition :

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue comprises:

(i) Income from fare collection is recognized on the basis of use of tokens, money value of actual usage in case of Smart Cards and other
direct fare collection.

{ii) Interest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists, on time Proportion Basis
{using the effective interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the nel carrying amount of the financia? asset),

(iii) Income on investment is recognized based on the terms of the investment, Income from mutual fund scheme having fixed maturity
plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such investment.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The functional/ reporting currency of the Company is Indian Rupees.

(i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Foreign currency monetary items {assets and liabilities) are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction,

Gaing and losses, if any, at the year-end in respect of monetary assets and monetary liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss except in case of gains or Josses arising on long term foreign currency monelary items relating to the acquisition of depreciable
assets which are added Lo or deducted from the cost of such assets.

Earnings per share :

Basic carnings are calculated by dividing the net profit/ {loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earning per share are calculated by dividing the net profits attributable to
ordinary equity holders and potenlial equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares outstanding during the
year and weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the diluted potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares,

Accounting for Taxes on Income :

Provision for current tax represents the amount that would be pavable based en computation of tax as per the provisions of the Incomoe
Tax Act, 1961, Current tax is determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year after taking into
consideration benefits admissible under the Income Tax Act, 1961.Current tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity.

i
H
i




DELHI AIRPORT"METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED -
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, but they intend o
seltle current tax labililies and assets cn a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case
itis recognized in OCI or equity.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are veviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash comprises of Cash on Hand, Cheques on Hand and demanl deposits with Banks. Cash Equivalents are short term, highly liquid
nvestments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value,

Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flow".

Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-oceurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liabitity,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote, Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the
management/ independent experts, These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current managemont
estimate. The contingent assets are net recoginised in financial statement, however the same is disclosed where an inflow of econonic
benifit is probabie.
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 3. Other Non Current Financial Assets

Unsecured, considered good

(I) Advance other than capital advance
Security Deposits
Sub Taotal (A)

(II) Others
CENVAT Credit Receivable {refer note 23(d) }
Sub Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Note 4. Trade Receivabies

(1) Unsecured, considered good
Sub Total (A}

(if) Credit Impaired (More than 3 years old)
Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss
Sub Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Note 5. Cash and Cash Equivalants

Balances with Banks
Current Accounts
Cash on Hand
Total

Note 6. Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalants

Margin Money deposit*

Total

*Margin money deposits are given as guarantees o various governme

Note 7. Other Financial Assets
(Unsecured, considered good}
Trade Advances
Other Advances
Total

(Amount in Rs,'000)
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
40,898 40,898
40,898 40,898
4,30,401 4,30,401
4,30,401 4,30,401
4,71,299 4,71,299

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
12,008 12,008
(12,008) {12,008)

(Amount in Rs.'000)
Asat | As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
7,88,856 9,33,376
7,88,856 9,33,376

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

995 969
995 969
ut departments and banks,
As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1,460 1,460
76 76

1,536 1,536




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED -
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{(Amount in Rs,'000)

Note 8. Gquity Share Capital As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorized
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 87,00,000 87,00,000
(as at Mar 31, 2023, : 870,000,000, as at Mar 31, 2022: 870,000,000)
§7,00,000 87,00,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up .
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up 9,600 2,600
(as at Mar 31, 2022 ; 9,60,000, as at Mar 31, 2021: 9,60,000)
9,600 9,600
{2} Movements in equity share capital As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No of Shares Amount  No of Shares Ameun(
At the beginning of the year 9,60.000 9,600 9,60,000 9,600
Add: Shares Issued / bought back during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 9,60,000 9,600 9,60,000 9,600

{b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each
held. Tn the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding,

{c) Equity Shares held by holding company

shareholder is eligible for one vote per share
remaining assets of the Company alter distribution of

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No of Shares  Percentage No of Shares Percentage
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 9,59,499 99.95% 959,499 99.95%

(d) Equity Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2023
No of Shares  Percentage

As at March 31, 2022
No of Shares Percentage

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 9,59,499 99.95%

9,59,499 99.95%

(e) Equity Shares held by Promoters:

Asg at March 31, 2023
No of Shares

As at March 31, 2022

% Change
Percentage

Percentage No of Shares

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 9,590,499 99.95% 9,59,499

99.95%




DELFI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 9. Other Equity

(I) Retained Earnings

Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add: Gain /(Loss) for the year
Balance at the end of the year

(II) Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add: Gain /(Loss) for the year
Balance at the end of the year

{l1I) Other Equity component of financing instrument

Subordinate Debt

0% Subordinate Debt

[nter Corporate Deposit
Balance at the end of the year

Grand Total

{Amount in Rs,'000)

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(78,67,018) {(77,70,503)
(1,03,519) (96,515)
(79,70,537) (78,67,018)

As at As at

Mazrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(266) (266)

(266) (266)

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,45,02,028 1,45,02,028
95,10,897 95,10,897
12,93,486 12,78,788
2,53,06,411 2,52,91,713
1,73,35,608 1,74,24,430




DELHI AIRPORT MEFRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED .-
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Financial Liabilities- Non Current
(Amount in Rs.'000)

; . . Ag at Asat
e 10, ¥ - N ¥ rt;
Note 10, Borrowings- Non Current portion Maturity March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Secured
Loan froim Banks
Indian Repee Term Loan (Floaling Rate of Interest) 2012-2026 36,37 468 46,8-4,208
Loan from Others
Foreign Currency Loan From Financial Institution (Floatin g Rate of 2012-2026 406,173 764,631
Interest) ) ’
40,43,642 54,48,838

Repayment Terms of Long Term Borrowings

A. The Rupee Term loan From Banks and Fareign Currency loan from financial institution is tepayable by quarterly installment of 0.25% starting from
st April 2012 to January 2013 of the disbursed amount. The quarterly installment shall increase by 0,23% every year after 31st March 2015 and by
additional (223% in F.Y. 2(718-19, 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2024-25, ’

Effective Interest Rate
Rupee Term Loan 11.20% to 15.60%
Foreign Cwrrency Loan from Others 5.00263% to 6.63143%

If Hoating rate financial liability is recognised initially at an amount equal to the principal payable on maturity, re-estimating the future interest
payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying amount of the liability, :

Security for Term Loans

Indian Rupee Term Loan and Foreign Currency Lean from others given above, are secured by first charge against moveable properties, machinery,
machirery spares, equipment, tools and accessories, vehicles, and all other movable assets except project assets, both present and future and the
borrower’s other assets, baok debls, opera ting cash flow, commission, outstanding moneys including claims elc.

As per Financing documents executed with Jenders, securities have been created inf
creation, modification of charge with Registrar of Companies.

avour of the lenders by filing application for Registration of

A Corporate Undertaking had been provided by the Holding Company, M/s Reliance Infrastructure Linited to Consortium Lenders (Banks and
Financial Institution) for debt servicing,

Loan covenants:

Bank lvans contain certain debt covenants relating to imitation on indebledness, debt -equity ratio, net borrowings to EBIDA ratio and debt service
coverage ratio. The limitation on indebtedness covenant gets suspended if the company meels certain prescribed criteria. Due to the handing over the
project and termination of the concession agreement, pending award of arbitration, the limitation on indebtedness remains suspended for the debt
covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loarn.

Details of default as at balance sheet date (refer note 31 for lender wise details):

Particulars Interest Principal Repayment |Period
- Septmﬁber 22 ke
Indian Rupee Term Loan (Floating Rate of Intcres 1) 3,03,482 - |March 23
Foreign Currency Loan From Financial Institubion
(Floating Rate of Interest) 83,210 - |Feb 22 to March 23
Total ) 3,86,692 -
Note 11. Non Current Provisien As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Provision for Employec Benefits

-Provision for Gratuity 1,610 1,595

-Provision for Leave Encashment 616 768

2,227 2,322




DELHT AIRPORT METRO-EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED B -
Notes forming part of Financial Stafements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Financial Liabilitics- Current
(Adnonnt in 35.000)

Note 12, Trade Payables As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
lotal outstanding dues of Micro Enterprise and Small Enlerprise - 253
Total oulstanding dues to creditors other than Micro Enterprise and Small 13,338,784 13,26,370
Enterprise
13,38,784 13,26,623
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at Manch 31, 2023 Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment As at March 31,
2023
Farliculars Less than 1 vear L2 vears 2-3vears | More than 3 vears Total
ASME - - - - N
Qthers 26,366 3138 - 13,09,279 13,358,784
Disputed dues- MSME - - - - B
Disputed dutes- Others - - - - -
Total 26,366 3138 - 13,09,279 13,38,784
As at March 31, 2022 Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment As ay
March 3t, 2022
Paitivulars Less than I vear 1-2 yeais 2-3vears | More than 3 vears Total
MSME 193 12 18 - 253
Others 10,500 3046 3,235 13,07,588 13.26,370
Dispuded dues- NSME - - - - -
Disputed dues- Olhers - - - B -
Total 10,693 3058 5,283 13,07,588 13,26,623
Nole 13, Borrowings- Current portion Asgat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 H
Current Matuarities of lidian Rupee Term Loan 2,235,811 18,808
Current Marurites of Forelpn Currency Loan From Financial Instilution - -
2,25,811 48,868
Note 14, Gther Financial Liability- Cutrent portion Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Acerued and Due on borrowings 3,86,692 86,266
386,692 86,266
Note 15 Cuivent Provision As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 H
Provision for Employee Benefits
-Provision for Graluity 13 12 .
-Provision for Leave Encashment 435 57
58 69
Note 16. Other Current Liabilities . As at Asat
March 31, 3023 March 31, 2022 !
Amount Received against Arbilration Award (Refer note 24{ah 16,677,005 38.07,925
Refundable Security Deposit AAKT 30487
BG Cocashinwng 14,32,691 4,32,001
Emplovee Benetit Payable 4,071 23
Statutory: Dues Pavable ° 1,363 T 3%
Expense Payable - 4066

51,353,617 42,75,518




DELHI AIRPORT MEFRO'EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 17. Other Income

Interest received on
Fixed Deposits
Others

Total

Note 18, Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Fund
Staff Welfare Expenses

Total

Note 19. Finance Cost

Interest on Loan

- Interest on loans

- Interest on foreign currency loans

- Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss on ECB loans

Less : Transfer of Interest cost to DMRC receivable
Total Interest on Loan

Other interest
Other borrowing Cost {Including Bank charges)
Total

(Amount in Rs,'000)

Year ended

Year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
25 24
- 66
25 90

Year ended

Year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
9,138 8,896
737 712
360 366
10,235 9,974

Year ended

Year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

5,62,161 19,51,049

60,510 3,25,967

61,311 (1,13,135)

Sub Total 6,84,012 21,63,880
(6,84,012) (21,63,880)

- 30,691

5,990 6,942

5,990 37,633

{Amount in Rs."000)

Note 20. Other Expenses Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Rent 144 127
Repairs and Maintenance
- Others - 63
Insurance .79 42
Legal and Professional Charges 68,916 46,787
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation [oss {net) 17,830 1,657
Communication Expenses 32 63
Vehicle Hire Charges - 8
Travelling and Conveyance 8 57
Payment to auditors (refer note below) 106 153
Other Miscellanecus Expenses 204 40

Total 87,319 48,998
Note : Payment to Auditors

Year ended Year ended

Parficulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
As auditors
Audit Fee 53 53
Limited Review 53 53
Total 106 106
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Nete 21 : Financfal Instruments - Accounting Classification and Fair Value Measurements :

The fair value of the financial assets and Habilities are included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions werc used to estimate the fair values:

1. Fair value of cash and short terms deposils, trade and other short receivables, trade payables , other current liabilities , short term loans :
from banks aund other financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these |
instruments. ;
2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameter such as interest rates
and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of
these receivables.

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

Level: 1 Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observables, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 ; Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market
data

Note 22: Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's financial
risk management policy is set by the Board of Directors,

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,

Credit Risk vanagement .

Credit risk arises when a counlerparty defaults on its contractual obligations to pav resulting in financial loss to the Company. The
company’s business model was such that it workecd putely on a cash basis for its fare revenue (which was the predominant source of
revenue,

Credit risk arises when a counterparty defaulis on its contractual obligations to pay resulting in financial loss to the Com pany. The
company does not have any operations at present due to handing over of its operations to DMRC pursuant to default as per Concession
Agreement with effect from Ist July 2013.

Liquidity Risk
a) Post handing over of the operations to DMRC, the company obtains sub-ordinate debts and other debts from the Holding Company to
meet oul the operational cost and repayment of loans.




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED e
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

b) Maturities of financial liabilities:

Pursuanl to certain events of defanlt by Delhi Melro Rail Corporation (DMRC), the "Company” had terminated the Concession
Agreement vide Termination Notice dated October 08, 2012 and consequently the entire assets {including project assets) had been
handed over to DMRC with effect from 1st July 2013 and the Company ceased to provide for depreciation/amortisation. Resulbtant
impact on the profit & loss account and the final adjustment entries will be determined when the final order is passed. {refer Note 24 (a)).

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 3 Years to 5 Years 5 years above
Financial liabilities
31-Mar-23
Borrowings 225,811 13,68,732 26,74,910 -
Trade pavables - 13,238,784 - - -
Other financial liabilities 3,86,692 - - -
Total 19,51,287 13,68,732 26,74,910 -
3-Mar-22
Borrowings 18,868 25,72,167 28,765,671 -
Trade payables 13,26,623 - - -
Other financial liabilities 86,266 - - -
Total 14,61,756 25,72,167 28,76,671 -

Market Rislc

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
The company is exposed to 2 types of market risks namely currency risk and interest rate risk. Fluctuation on account of currency risk
and interest vate risk with respect to financial liabilities except trade payables {in foreign currency), are adjustable from Arbitration
award {refer Note 24 a).

a) Currency Risk:
- The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; conseuently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise,
Fluctuation on account of currency risk with respet to financial liabilities are adjustable from the Arbitration Award {refer note 2a).

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated mone tary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the year
are as follows.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Foreign Currency Afnounts in Amount (INR) A}nmmts in Amount (INR) :
foreign currency foreign currency
Trade payables ush 1,508 1,23,898 1,508 1,14,282
Trade payables EUR 1,560 1,39,570 1,560 1,31,420 i
Advances Receivables EUR 348 31,151 248 29,332
Secured bank loans UsD 4,943 106,173 10,151 7,069,379
Interest Payable UsD 1,013 83,210 25} 19,269
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The Jollowing table demoenstrates the sensitivity W a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, wilh all other variabley
held eonstant. The impact on the Company’s loss before tax and equity is due to changes in the carrving value of monetary assets and
tiabilities other than secured bank loans since the exchange differences in respect of these loans are adjustable from arbitration award
{refer note 24a). The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material,

Effect on loss
Particulars Currency Change in rate fbefore tax and
pre-tax equity
31-Mar-23 . .
ush +10% -12,359.84
Based on YOY change between FY22 usp -10% 12,389.84 i
& FY23 EUR +10% -10,841.88
FEUR -10% (0,841.88
31-Mar-22
ush +10% -11,428.23
Based on YOY change bebween FY2! usD -10% 11,428.23
& FY22 EUR +10% -10,208.83 .
EUR -10% 10,208.83

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings
with floating interest rates. Pursuant to default of DMRC, any fluctuation on account cutrency risk and interest rate risk with respect o
financial Labilities except trade payables {in foreign currency), are recoverable from DMRC or adjustable against the arbitration award
{refer note 24 a).

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analvses below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate for variable rate borrowings at the end of
reporting petiod. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year,

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on variable rate borrowings with all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax will not be atfected because interest paid is recoverable from DMRC or adjustable against the arbitration
award and the arbitration award was given in favour of DAMEPL (refer note 24 a),

Collaterals :
The company has pledged part of its short term deposit in order to fulfil collateral (margin's money) requirements of guarantees given in
favour of various Government Authorities and property plant and equipment's in favour of lenclers. The amortised cost / carrying
amount of collaterals on each reporting date are given in table below. The counter parties have an obligation to return the securities to
the company upon settlement of contracts,

{Amount in Rs,'000) |

As at| As at

Notes March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
Current )
Financial assets
First charge -
Cash and cash equivalents (at Amorlised cost) 5 7,688,856 9,323,376 ;
Non-financial assets - - :
Total current assets pledged as security 7,88,856 . 9,33,376
Non-current
First charge
Properly, plant and equipment at carrying cost 2.1 90,802 90,802
Total non-~current assets pledged as security 90,802 90,802
Total assets pledged as securilty 8,79,658 10,24,178
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Note: 23 Contingent Liabilities and commitnents i

Claim against the company not acknowledzed as debts and under litigation: {Amount in Rs. '000)

S. Neo, Contingent Liabilities As af] As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1 Liquidated Damages 6,03,800 603,800

Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC) hadt demanded Rs 60,28 crores as liquidated damages for delay in completion of
the profect, The Company had paid Rs. 43.48 crores against the demand under protest. The Company had disputed the
demand as the delay in execution of the project is atiributable to DMRC and he matter was reterred ko arbitration.
Arbitrators awarded claim amount of Rs. 23.25 crores and interest on same for Bs. 1.75 crores vide Award dated 271h)
Iune 2014 and sustained the balance in favour of DMRC. The company has challenged the award before the Delhi High
Court, Matter being sub-judice, the net amount Rs. 34.97 crores (ie. Rs, 4318 crores less Ks. 851 crores refunded by
DMRC) is considered as recoverable .

2 Deployment cost of CISF; 157,000 1,37.000

The Ministrv of Urban Development, Government of India had insisted on the engagement of Central Industrial Security

Force (CISE). Cost of deploviment of CISF swas Rs. 39.18 crores for Hie period from February 2011 to June 2013. Out of the

same Rs, 23.78 crores were provided in the books amd balance Rs. 13.70 cores for the period from 1st May 2012 to 30th)

June 2013 was not provided in the books. The amount of Rs. 3948 crores along with nterest and other miscellaneous

claiims was disputed by the Company and the matter was referred to arbitration.

Arbitrators awarded the decision against the company vide Award dated 27t June 2014, The cempany has challenged

the award before Hon'ble Delhi High Court.
3 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis 9,935,573 8.89,2354 i
4 Disputed demands by Custom and Excise Authority 6,350,100 6,50,100 ]

The company had in earlier years claimed Cervat Input Credit of Bs. 43,0:4,01,291 /- ont purchases of fixed asscts and :
accordingly netted off the same from the "Right Under Concession Agreement”, The claim of Cenvat Credit was
disallowed by Comunissioner, vide Crder No.16/ST/COMME/ DM/ RTK/2014-15, dated 12-12-2014, and penalty was| i
also imposed for Rs. 63.01 crores, which are unnder dispute. The company has filed an appeal with CESTAT against the|
order of the commissioner and same is pending with CESTAT, Delhi, and the same has not been provided in the books
of accounts as the same is considered as un-sustainable,
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Note; 24,

Not

o

b

5,

Termination of Concession Agreement

a4} Pursuant to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (IWRC), Delhi Airpart Metro Express Private Limited {DAMEFL), the
terminated the Concession Agreement vide Termination Notice dated October 08, 2012 and consequently the entire assets {

aver to DMRC with effect from Lst July 2013 and the Company ceased to provide
wlich, vide its Awand dated May 11, 2017, granted Termination Payment
interest. The said Award was upheld In- the single bench of Hom'ble

"Company”, had

including project assets) had been hared
for depreciation/amortisation, The dispute was referred to an Arbitration Tribunai
and other compensation in favour of DAMEPL for Rg +,662.59 crore along with post-Award
High Court of Delld and challenged beiore division bench by DMRC; it was set aside by the

division bench of Hon'ble High Court of Delhi on January 15, 2019. DAMEPL filed Special Leave Petition before the Flon'ble Supreme Court of India against fhe said

Judgement of Division Benciv. The matter was Listed for hearing by the Henorable Supreme Court of india on July 23, 2019, Meanwhile, an interim directon vide order
dated April 22, 2019, was passed to not declare DAMEPL's accounts as Non-Performing Assets il further orders, Hearings commenced on Sept 17, 2020, continued on
Sept 21 and Ot 07, 2020 and July 06-08, 2021, Vide Juclgement dated September 09, 2021, the order of Single Benck of Delhi High Court and the Award were u pheld by
the Supreme Court. The Company filed execution petition before Delli High Court on Seplember 12, 2021 on which Delhj High Court passed final orders on March
10, 2022 and askect DMRC to pay the decretal amounts in 3 tranches. The last tranche has to be paid on or before 31.05.2022 which DMRC failed to pay. .

©On March 17, 2033 the Hon'ble Delhi High Court (DHC) directed Government of India (GOT) & Government of National Capital Territory, Delhi {GONCT D) to

provide sovereign guarantee/ subordinate debt to DMRC by March 31, 2023 to enable it to sa tisty the Award by April 30, 2023,

Alternatively, the order divected GOI

fo return the funds repatriated by DMRC after March 10, 3022 order, v March 31, 2023, so that DMRC could Hien pay the entire remaining amount to DAMEPL

torthwith The order further directed automalic attachment of DMRC's all
attachment, of salary and Q&b expenses. The Court modified the order on March 29, 2023, alloswing DMRC's request,
The GOT and GONCTD tiled Special Leave Petitions {SLPs) before the Supreme Court. DAMEPL has

2023, The 3 SLPs were heard on April 10, 2073 by the Bench headed by Ihe Chicf Justice of India
DAMEPL has continued to prepare its Financial results on a ‘Going Concern’ basis,

accounts by April 1, 2023 if the aforesaid options failed to materialize, and the Court

reserved its right to issue further directions GOl and GONCTD fo satisfy the Award, DMRC filed a Review Petition before the same Court, seeking relaxation from

also filed a SLF chaflonging the review order dated Mareh 29,
and will be next heard oty Apil 28, 2023, In view of the above,

DAMRC had s0 {ar paid Rs. 2,599.17 crore to DAMEP,, as per Hon'ble Delhi High Court’s interim orders so far, DAMEPL has utilised the amount tor reducing its debt.
Resultant impact on the profit & loss account and the final adjustment entries will be determined after the execution of final award,

b) Ther holding company has infused funds into the Company by wav of Subordinate Debt and Inler Corporate Deposits for the purpose of the Project. DAMEPL has

«~ been set up to undertake the business of “Desiym, Installation, Commissioning, Cperation and Maintenance of Airport Metro Express Line i.e. New
P 4 F P

Delhi - Indira

- Gandhi Internabional Airport - Dwarka Sector-217 (project). Delhi Motra Rail Corporation Limited (DMRC) had entered into a Concession Agreement with the
Company on Auwgust 25, 2008 for the project for a period of 30 vears. These funds infused, carry zero percent interest and are repavable by mutual consent of the

parties onlv atter the senior lenders (Banks and Financial Instiution} are paid in Full,

On May 11, 2017, the Arbiteal Tribunal awarded claim in favour of the Company which included inferest on Termination Payment. The same award were upheld by

the HMon, Supreme Court vide fudgement dated September 09, 2021. Since the Company would be receiving interest on the

funds {nfused by the promoter For the

puwrpose of the Project, the promoter has raised claln for inkerest on the funds infused by them from the date of commencement of the arbitral proceedings and at a

rafe equivalent to the rate awarded by the arbitral bribual and Howble Supreme Court. The interest expenditure as claimed by the promoters js

since the matter is sub-judice.

c)|Receipt of Award and DMRC receivable As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
{Rs in "000) (Rs in*000)

Opening DMRC Receivable /{Advance received) (38,07,925) 1,82,16,795)
Banks Interest for the vear 6,22,701 22,62,131
Fares Loss for the vear 61,311 1,31,786

- (31,23,913) 2,06,40,712
[Lews's Receipt irom DNMRC during ihw rear 15,43,002 241,148,637
E;];IIICG siewn as Oher current liabdlity 46,67,005 38,07,925

d) Additional works claims

not accounted for

The Company had also filed claits worth Rs, 102.36 Crores on account of change in Scope, namels additional works for the baggage handling svstem (Rs. 25.12
crares), additional works related to Passenger Tunnel at IGI Afrport Station (Rs. 22.89 crores} and various other additional works (Rs. 54.35 crores), which have not
been awarded in favour of the company vide award dated 27th furre 2014, The Company has challenged the award before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi,

Un-hedged Foreign Currency Risk Exposure

Foreign Currency Risk Exposures are not hedged by derivative instuments or otherwiso. Particulars of Un-hedged forelgn corrency exposure as at fh re porting date

are as fellows:
Foveign Currency (USD '000)

{Amount in Rs.'000)

Asat As at Asat As al
Foreige: Currency Exposure in USD March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Pavables 1,508 1,508 1,23,858 114,282
Borrow{ng from Banks 4943 10,151 1,06,173 7,69,379
[nterest Pavable 1,013 254 £3,210 19,269
Total Payables 7,461 11,913 6,13,281 9,02,931
Foreign Cuirency (EURQ '000) {Amount in Rs.'000)
As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Foreign Currency Exposurc in Eurc
Trade Pavables 1,360 1,560 1.39,570 L3120
Total Payables 1,560 1,560 1,39,570 1,31,420
Advances 348 M8 31,151 29,332
Total Receivables 348 348 31,151 29,332

i
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Mote 26.

A,

Employee bencfit obligations

Defined contribwiion plans

{a) Providenl Fund;

(b} State Defined Contribution Plan:
-Employer’s Contribution to Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995
~National Pension Scheme

Company are required to contribute a specified percentage of pavroll cost to the retivement benefit schem
Income tax authorities. The only obligation of the company with respect to the retivement benefit pl
recoguised in Statement of Profit and loss of Rs,328 thousand (for the vear ended March 31, 2022 Rs.
the compary- at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at March 31, 2023, contributions o Rs, 2

2022-23 had nat been paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to dMarch 31, 2023,

The Company has recognised the following amounts as expense in the financial statements for the vear:

es to fund the benefits, These furds are recognized by the
an is to make the specified contribution. The total expenses
269 thousand) represent conbributions payable to these plans by
7 thousand {as at March 31, 2022 Rs. 22 Hiousand ) due in respect of

(Amount in Rs."000)

Particulars Forthe yearended | For the year ended
Narch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contribution to Provident Fund 378 343
Contribution o National Pension Scheme 328 269
Total 706 612

. Defined benefit plans
Gratuity is pavable to employees as per Payment of Gratuity Act. Valuations in respect of Gratuitv have been

Sheet date, based on the assumptions described below,

{a) Gratuity

The Company operates a funded gratuite plan administered by trusk Everv emplovee is entitled o
completed vear of service in line with the Payment of Gratui v Act, 1972 or Company scheme
from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benofits vest after five

carried out by independent actuary, as at the Balance

a benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each
whichever is benefictal. The sane Is pavable at the time of separation
vears of continuous service,

{Amount in Rs.'000)

Particulars PV of obligation FV of Plan Assets Total

As at April 1, 2021 1,482 - 1,482
Current Service Cost 121 - 121
Interest Expense/ (Income) 93 - 93
Total Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 214 - 214
Remeasurement (gainsy/losses;

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest expense/ {income) R R .
Actuarial (Gain }/loss from change in demographic assumptions {1 - (1}
Actuarial {Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions {9} 0 {9
Actuarial {gain)/loss from change in Experience adjustments {119) - (119)
Total Amount Recognised in QCI {129) 0 (129)
Contributions ;

LEmplovers - -
Withdrawals - -
Benefit Pavments - - -
Asg At March 31, 2022 1,566 ] 1,566
Particulars EFV of Plan Assets Total

As at April 1, 2022 1,566 - 1,566
Current Service Cost 100 - 100
Interest Expense/(Income) 131 - 131
Total Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 231 - 231
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:

Return on plan assels, excluding amount included in interest expense/ {inceme) - - -
Actuarial (Gain )/ loss from change in demographic assunyptions - - -
Actuarial {Gain )/loss trom change in financial assumptions (11) 0 (d1)
Actuarial (gaing/10ss from change in Expericnce adjustments (133 - {133)
Total Amount Recognised in OCI (174) 0 {174)
Contributions ;

Emplovers - - -
Withdrawals - -
Benetit Pavinents - - -
As At March 31, 2023 1,623 [} 1,623

§
i
i
i
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The net Hahility relales to funded plans is as follows:

Patticulars

As al
March 31, 2023

Asai
March 31, 2022

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations

1,366

Fair value of plan assets

1.623

Funded status Surplus/(Deficit)

(1,623)

(1,566)

Ohthets,

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

(1,623)

(1.566)

The plan exposes the company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, salary risk and longeviiy risk,

Investment risk

sovernment bonds.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate
which is determined by reference ko market vields at the end of the reporting period on

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan tabili tv; however, s will be
partially offset by an increase i the return on the plan’s debt investments,

Longevitv risk

participants will increase He plan’s liabiliiv.

The present value of the defined benetit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan

Salavy risk

participants will increase the plan’s lalility.

The present value of the detined benefit plan Liability s cafcutated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase it the salary of the plan

. Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The signiticant actuarial assunytions were as follows:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Mortalitv Rate IAL 2012-14 (Urban) | TAL 2012-14 (Urban)
Atlrition Rate 0% P.A 0% P A,
Imputed Rate of Interest (D) 731% P.A, 641% P.A.
Salary growth rate 5% PA 5% P.A.
Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A,
Remaining Working Life 5 Years 3 Years
. Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the detined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is;
a) Change in Assumptions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salary growth rate /1% PA, (+/) 1% A,
Discotnt rate (+/-) 1% DA, (/)% PA,
Athition rate (+/-)1% P.A. +/11% PA.

(b) Impact on defined benefit obligation

Tncrease in assumplions

Decrease in assumptions

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Patticulars

Asal
March 31, 2023

Asat
Marech 31, 2022

Salary growth rate

Discount rate (36)

46

[Co)]
7 10

Attrition rate

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlike

1w to oceur, ang] changes

in some of the assumptions may be coreelated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
porting period) has been applied as when

(present value of the defined benefit obligation caleulated with the projected unit credit methed at the end of the re
caleulating the deftned benefit liabilit: recognised in the balance sheer,

The methads and by pes of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior per

The following paymenls are expected contribution to the defined benefit plan in future years
Gratuity -

ol

Pavticulars

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
MNarch 31, 2022

Within e next 12 months

13

12

02125 (PY: 2023.21)

14

13

2025-28 (PY: 2024-27)

1,972

1975

bevord 2028 (PY: bevorud 2027)
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Note 27,

Note 28,

Segment Reporeting

There are no reportable segments in accordance with Islian Accounting Standard-108 ‘Operating Segment’ prescribed under the Companies {Indian ceounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

Related Party Disclosures #

As per the indian Accounting Standard-24 prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

awl transactions are disclosed below:

A)  Holding Company
Reliance Infrasteucture Limited (R Infra)

B) Fellow Subsidiary
Reliance Velocity Limited

C)  Joint Venture of holding Companies
Utilitv Powertech Limited (UPL)

D) Key management persounel
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Yadav -Wholetime Director

E) Transactions with related party
Key management persenne! compensation

as amended, the Company”s related parties

{Amounts in Rs.'000)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Compensation of kev management personnel® 9875 9,234
Taotal compensation 9875 9,234
* Compensation includes post retirement benefits and perquisites
* The transactions with the related parties are disclosed anly H / from the date relation exists
F) Transactions with related parlies {Amounts in Rs.'000)
Patticulars As at As ab
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statement of profit and loss heads - -
Other Transactions
ICD taken
- Reliance Infrastructure Timited R 15,520
- Reliance Velocity Limited 14,698 23,904
Outstanding balances arising from salefpurchases of goods and services
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payable
- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 5,594 5,591
- Wtility Powertech Limited 37 37
Outstanding balances for Loans toffrom related parties
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance sheet heads (Closing balances):
- Reliance Infrastructure Limited
Subondinated Debt 1,45,02,028 1,43,02,028
0% Subordinate Nebt received 95,10,897] 95,10,897
[nter Corporate Deposit 12,142,661 12,142,684
- Reliance Velocity Limited
Inter Corporate Deposit 30,642 33,904

The above disclosure does not inchude transactions with public utiliey service providess, viz, electricite and communication in the normal conrse of business,

Bank Guarantee given by holding Company, M/ s Reliance Infrastructurs Limited 1o Conumis

iener of Customs, Mumbai Rs, 193,038,404/ - (PY: Rs. 193,638,104/ )

A Corporate Undertaking had been provided by the holding Company, M/s Reliance Infraskuctuve Limited to Consortium Lenders (Banks and Financial Institution)

for debt servicing. B
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Note 29,

Note 30,

Note 31

Note 32,

Note 33.

Note 34,

Naote 35,

Earning per Equity Share

Particulars Year endexl Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loss for the vear attributabie ko the owners of the Company (Rs, in 000} 1.03,519) (96.516)
Weighted average nuinker of equity shares 9,60,000 9,60,000
Nominal value per share (Rs.) 10 10
Basic earnings per share {Bs.) {108) (101)
Diluted 2arnings per share (Rs.) (108) (100

Note: There are no outstanding dilutive potential equity shares

" Deferred Tax Assets

In compliance with IND AS-12, "Income Taxes” proscribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, the deferred tax asset arising
on account of brought forwand losses and unabsarbed depreciation has not been recognised in view of consideration of prikience and uncertainty regarding the
realisation of the same in the foreseealile future.

(Amounts in Rs. ‘000)

Deferred Tax Assels As at As at
Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liability
Excess depreciation as per Compapies act over Income Tax act (7,37.843) {7.37.843),
Gross Deferred Tax Liability (7.37.845) (7,37,845)
Deferred Tax Assets
Unabsorbed depreciation & Carry forward Losses 22,70,079 22,93,382
Provision for Leave Encashment and Gratuity 394 622
Provision for doubbiul debt 3122 3122
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 22,73,795 22,97,126
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 15,35,950 15,359,281

Delay in repayment of Loans and interest
* The Overdue amount as on 31st March 2023 are as ander :

(Amounts in Rs. '000)

Bank Amount due -Interest [Amount due -Principall Period

) Repayment
Axis Bank 36,754 -|Sep 22 to March 23
Indian Bank 24,212 -|Sep 22 to March 23
Union Bank 16,821 -|Sep 22 to March 23
Bank of India 36,238 -|5ep 22 to March 23
Canara Bank 12,608 -|Sep 22 to March 23
Centrat Bank of india 25,205 -|$ep 22 to March 23
Bank of Baroda 80,924 -|Sep 22 to Maich 23
Punjab & Sindh Bank 28,082 -|Sep 22 tc March 23
UCQO Bank 42,837 -|Sep 22 to March 23
NFC UK 83,210 -|Feb 22 to Mar 23
Total 3,86,692 -

¥ Bince the matter is sub-judice and as an interim direction vide order dated April 22, 2019 and the award were upheld by the Hon. Supreme Couzt vide judgement
dated September 09, 2021 (refer note 24 (a).

Capital Management

The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet (o be managed capital:

1. Total equity - Share Capital, Retained Protit/ {Loss) and Other Equity.

2 Working capital.

The Company manages its capital 50 as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s
judgement of the appropriate balance of kes clements in order to mect jts strategic and day-to-dav needs, The Company considers the amount of capiial it proportion
to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in econumic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlyving assets.

Pursuant to default by DMRC, the management monitors the requirement of capital te repay the borrowings and o meet the other operational costs of the company
from Eime (o time and infuse the capital through sub-ordinate debt, which is classified as other equity. .
Going Concern

The Company has accumulated josses which exceed its net worth of the company. [Towever Hon'ble Supreme Court on Septetnber 9, 2021 upheld the arbitral award
in favour of the company , In the matter of the dispute between Company and Delli Metro Rail Corporation Limited (DMRC), arisivg due to terminalion of the
Concession Agreement for Delhi Airport Meiro Express Line Project. DMRC is consequently divected to pav Termination Paviment and other compensation, totalling
to Rs. 2,945 Crore, plus pre-award and post-award interest up to the date of payment, On March 17, 2023 the How'ble Delhi High Court (DHC) directed Government
of india (GO & Government of National Capital Terzitory, Delhi (GONCTD) to provide soverelyn guarantee/ subordinate debt to DMRC by March 31, 2023 to
enable it to satisty the Award by April 30, 2023, Alternatively, the order directed GOI to return the funds repatriated by DMRC after March 10, 2022 order, by March
31, 2023, so that DMRC could then pay the entire remaining amount to DAMEPL forthwith The order further directed automatic attachment of DMRC's all accoumis
by Apuil 1, 2023 i the aforesaid options Fafled to malerialize, and fhe Court reserved its right to issue further direciions GOI and GONCTD o sitisty the Award.
DMRC filed a Review Pelition before e same Court, seeking relaxation from attachment, of salary and Q&M expenses. The Court moditied fhe order on March 29,
2023, allowing DMRC's request.

The GOI and GONCTD filed Special Teave Petitions (SLPs) betore the Supreme Court. DAMEPL has also filed a SLP challenging the review order dated March 29,
2023. The 3 5LPs were heard on April 10, 2023 by the Bench headed by the Chief Justice of India and will be next heard on April 28, 2023, In view of the above,
DAMEPL has continued to prepare its financial resulis on a ‘Going Concern’ basis. .

Impairment of Fixed Assets .
The arbitral award amount was more than the carrying value of fixed assets. (Refer Note 24 (a).

Events occurring after the reporting period
{a) Other events .
There are no events oceurring after the reporting period which have material impact on the financials.
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 36

Ratio disclosures

Sr No. (Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 |Explanation
a) Current ratio {in times) 0.11 0.16 |Increase in Current Liabilities
b) Debt-Equity ratio (in times) 0.27 0.32 |Repayment of Debts
c) Debt service coverage ratio - - | The company had invoked the
arbitration against DMRC and
received arbifration award in
favour of company. All Lenders
outsatnding dues are paid or (o
be paid against the receipt of
award amount from DMRC.
Refer Note 24(a).
d3 Return on equity ratio -0.69% -0.55%
e) Inventory turnover ratio - - The Comany has suspended
its active operation, hence not
f) ‘Trade receivables turnover ratio - - given
£ Trade pavables turnover ratio - -
I} Net capital turnover ratio - -
i) Nat profit/ (loss) ratio - -
i) Return on capital emploved - -
k) Rehurn on investment - -

Petails of numerator and denominator for co

mputing the above ratios

{Amount in Rs,'000}

X}

Investment

2,13,91,076

Sr No. [Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
1) Current ratlo !
Current assets 7,091,387 9,365,882
Gurrent Liability 70,886,962 57,37,344
i) Debt-Equity ratio
Debt (inculding accured interast) 46,56,144 55,83,972
Sharsholder's equity 1.73,45,208 1,74,34,030
i) Debt service coverage ratio The company had invoked the
arbitration against DMRC and
received arbitration award In
favour of company. All Lenders
outsatnding dues are paid or lo
be paid against the recsipt of]
award amount from DMRC.
Refer Note 24(a).
iv} Net profit {loss) (1,03,519) (96,516)
v) Inventory - -
vi)  {Trade receivables - -
vii)  |Trade payables 13,38,784 13,26,623
viii) | Turnover - -
ix) Capital employed
Total Assets 2,84,78,039 2,86,22,534
Current Liabilities 70,86,962 57,37,344
Capital employed 2,28,85,180




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 37
i} During the vear, the company has not entered with anv scheme of arrangements in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act. 2013,
ii) The Company has complied with the Pprovision of section 2(87) of the Companies Act.2013 read with fhe Companies (Restrictions on nember of
layers.) Rules, 2017, i
iii} The Company has nat been declared willful deaulter by any lenders as at March 31, 2023 |
iv} No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for helding any benami property under the Benami Transactions i
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made there under, ' :
v) The Company has not entered any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 360 uf the :
Companies Act, 1936
vil Coampany has not traded or invested in Crvpta carreney or Virtual Curreney during the financial vear
vii) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities {In termediaries)

with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(@} Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons o entities identified in anv manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide anv guarantee, security or the Jike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

viil} The Company have not received any' tund from any person(s) or entitr{ies), including foreiyn entities (Funding Partvy with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or ofherwise) that the Company shalk;
() Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Fundling Parts:
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(L) Provide anv guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
ix) The Company does not have any such transaction whicl is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as |
income during the vear in the tax assesstents under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Note 38 Previous years
The previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessa ty,
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